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The one hundred and eighty-five-year-old Gillespie House is located on Old 
Highway HE at Limestone, Tennessee, a small farming community that developed 
when the railroad was built through the county, west of Jonesboro.

The house is fronted by the old spring where George Gillespie first settled in 
1772. The property was recently sold at auction to settle the H. M. Klepper 
estate. It contains a tenant house and a service station built across the road. 
These buildings are vacant &nd the present owners have decided to sell the pro­ 
perty to a buyer interested in seeing it preserved.

Composed of two sections, the rectangular-shape principal mass is 2-1/2 stories 
tall, constructed of rough, quarried limestone bearing walls, tapering in from 
24" foundation walls to a thickness of 12" at the gable story. Featuring the 
same type construction, a somewhat reduced scale, 1-1/2 story section is attached 
across the left end wall. The hillside lot allows for open access to the base­ 
ment rooms of these parallel sections. At the front of the house, the attached 
porch and garage beneath extend across the length of this elevation. Behind the 
house is a new fram addition built for the rear porch and kitchen rooms.

The overall design features balanced facade articulation with the exception of the 
main entrance which is set slightly off-center. This door opens directly into 
the hall which is partitioned across the southeast end for two chambers. Featuring 
the same plan, the second story rooms are reached by way of a closeted panel stair­ 
case built into the north corner. A steep staircase extends up to the attic and 
is constructed with narrow, pie-shape winders with doors at each entrance. The 
adjoining wing consists of one principal room with a closeted staircase built in 
the north corner connecting to the attic and to the basement room. The basement 
room has a fireplace and is divided into two sections by the transverse bearing 
wall. The principal rooms have entrances on the front and on the back. The wide 
stone chimneys are built into the bearing walls and flanked by tiny attic windows. 
set in the gable. There is a decorative niche in the gable end above the wing. 
The basic plan of the house has not been violated by the porch, garage, and kitchen 
additions. The roofing and decorative cornice featuring the Wall-of-Troy frets 
were added at a later date. The chimney is inscribed with the date "1792."

The interior is finished with a combination of original and new flooring, much of 
which is carpeted; the original floors were poplar. Where the ceiling is not 
boarded over, the joists are beaded and laid across with flooring finished on both 
sides and beaded underneath. The original roof framing consists of pole rafters 
joined by wood pegs. The pitch was changed when the roof was framed out over the 
shed and porch additions. The interior has been wired for electricity; heating 
vents and plumbing have been added. Wall finishes are plaster over masonry, painted 
or wallpapered, and feature narrow washboards, molded chair rails, and cove molding 
in the principal rooms. Rooms are partitioned by single-ply tongue and groove 
beaded board, vertical siding with chair rails and washboards to match the bearing 
wall finish. Windows are set 18" to 21" deep and have pegged frames and paneled 
casings with deep sills. In the principal rooms drawers have been added under the 
sills. Doors are 6'8" tall and 42" wide held by wrought iron strap hinges 36"
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long, bolted through the door. The cellar door is 57" tall. Mantles are 8 1 long 
and 61" tall. There were fireplaces in each room. Most of these have been 
remodeled or closed-off. The building was constructed in such a fashion that 
there are no signs of instability in the walls or floors. The house was occupied 
continuously until this past year.
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Built for permanence and durability, the Colonel George Gillespie stone house has 
remained a landmark in East Tennessee, since 1792 when it was erected by Seth 
Smith, a stone mason from Pennsylvania. Smith was a Quaker who immigrated to this 
area from Lancaster County where he had been a member of the New Hope Quaker Church. 
He is credited with building two of the few remaining, early stone houses in this 
area at Embreeville and at Rogersville. Built similar to a Pennsylvania farm house, 
the distinctive design is Early American in character. The house was built like 
a fortress of rough-cut squared and unsquared hand-quarried limestone. The 24" 
thick bearing walls are tapered in to 18" thickness at the eaves with musket ports 
5' above the floor. With the exception of the porch and frame addition, the house 
has retained most of the features of the original design and carpentry.

Colonel George Gillespie was born in Ireland in 1735 and died in Limestone, Washington 
County in 1820. Colonel Gillespie was married to Elizabeth Young. To this union two 
children were born, Captain Thomas Gillespie and Martha Gillespie. Colonel Gillespie 
was married the second time to Elizabeth Alien. To this union were born: George, 
James, Alien, Elizabeth, Jane and John Gillespie. Colonel Gillespie willed the 
house to his daughter Martha, who sold it to Jacob Clark. Clark sold the house to 
Jacob Klepper in 1842 and the house remained in the Klepper family until it was 
sold to settle an estate in 1976.

George Gillespie was an early settler in the Watauga country, having been there in 1772 
He purchased several thousand acres of land bounded by the Nolichuckey River and the 
Big and Little Limestone and their tributaries. He bought land from Jacob Brown in 
1772, which Brown had bought from the Cherokee Indians. The immigrants who came to 
settle in this area were continually under attack and they built a line of fofits 
Brown's settlement extended "down the Nolichucky below the mouth of the Big Limestone 
Creek. This area was vulnerable to attack by Indians incited by the British and a 
fort was built at George Gillespie's and a garrison was stationed there. Cherokees 
attacked the fort in 1777 but the inhabitants had withdrawn to Fort Watauga at Sycamore 
Shoals. The "Test Oath" was driving many Tories to the frontier. Suffering great 
difficulties and discouragements, in these early times, the settlers discharged the 
Tories and sheltered the refugee Whigs. Colonel Gillespie was named Colonel from the 
"Watauga Rifles, 1756." He fought with Marion and with Washington at Yorktown. Colonel 
Gillespie is listed among those signing the petition "of the inhabitants of the 
western country" in 1789 to the Assembly of North Carolina, praying a separation from 
that state—the inception of a movement ending in the formation of the State of Franklin. 
Captain Thomas Gillespie fought at the Battle of Kings Mountain with Colonel John Sevier.
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In 1783 the line dividing Washington and Greene counties was described as running from 
Irom>(Mountain in a direct line to George Gillespie's house, at or near the mouth of 
the Big Limestone Creek.

The stage route from Philadelphia passed through this area and John Sevier, Landon 
Carter, Jonathan Tipton, Andrew Jackson, Hugh Lawson White, James K. Polk and 
Andrew Johnson have paused to drink at the copious Gillespie spring.
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